
  
 

 
Date: 06th September, 2025 

 
To, 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza, Plot No. C/1, G Block, 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, 
Mumbai-400051 
 
Trading Symbol: ARABIAN 
 
Sub.:	Notice	convening	16th	Annual	General	Meeting	along	with	the	Annual	Report	for	the	
financial	year	2024‐25.	

	
Ref: Regulation 30 and 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 30 and Regulation 34(1) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed the 
following documents, which are being sent to the shareholders of the Company through electronic 
mode. 
 
1. Notice of the 16th Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on Monday, 29th 
September, 2025 at 04.00 p.m. through VC/other Audio Visual Means; and 
 
2. The Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 2024-25. 
 
The AGM Notice and Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 are also available on the 
website of the Company at www.arabianpetroleum.co.  
 
Kindly take the same on your record and acknowledge receipt of the same. 
 
Thanking You 
 
Yours Faithfully 
 
For	Arabian	Petroleum	Limited	
	 	
	
	
___________________________	
Manan	Hemant	Mehta	
Wholetime	Director	
DIN:	05124747	
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Dear Stakeholders,  

Let me start by wishing all of you a happy and healthy future.                   

 

It gives me immense pleasure to present to you our inaugural integrated annual report on your Company’s 

performance for the year 2024-25. 

 

In the face of ongoing global economic challenges, we have not only navigated through uncertainties but also 

capitalized on new opportunities. Our strategic initiatives have led to significant achievements, and we are 

proud of the milestones we have reached this year. 

 

Your Company’s strategic focus on harnessing its R&D capabilities for premiumization of its current product 

range, leveraging innovation to introduce new products, proactive management and 

 

As we look to the future, our confidence in continued growth and success is stronger than ever. We have an 

exceptional team, a clear vision, and an unwavering commitment to excellence. These attributes position us 

well to meet the evolving needs of our customers and to excel in an increasingly competitive market. 

 

Our team remains dedicated to our mission of delivering high-quality products and services. We continually 

seek innovative ways to enhance the customer experience, ensuring that we remain a trusted partner. Our clear 

vision provides a solid roadmap for the future, and our relentless pursuit of excellence drives us to achieve our 

goals. 

 

On this note, I would like to express my sincere thanks to our Board Members for their unwavering support 

and guidance. I would like to thank all the shareholders, customers, and vendors around the world for their 

continued trust in our company. And last but not the least, my heartfelt thanks to all our members, whose 

dedication and passion remain the biggest driver of the Company’s vision and strategic goals. 

 

Best wishes for the year ahead. 

 

 

Hemant Dalsukhrai Mehta 

Chairman & Managing Director 

 

THE CHAIRMAN OVERVIEW 



DEAR SHAREHOLDERS 

Sub: MCA’s Green Initiative for Paperless Communications 

 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has recently taken a “Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” by allowing paperless 

compliances by the companies. Towards this, MCA has issued Circulars bearing no. 17/2011 dated April 21, 2011, and 

18/2011 dated April 29, 2011 stating that the service of notice / document by a Company to its shareholders can now be 

made through electronic mode, subject to a few conditions. 

  

Our Company appreciates the initiative taken by MCA, as it believes strongly in a Greener Environment. This initiative also 

helps in prompt receipt of communication, apart from helping avoid losses/delays in postal transit. 

 

We, therefore, propose to send documents, such as the Notice of the Annual General Meeting, Annual Report, Half- yearly 

communications etc. henceforth to shareholders in Electronic Form at the e-mail address provided by them and made 

available to us by the depositories from time to time. 

 

In case you wish to receive all the above communications in electronic form; and 

 

hold your shares in dematerialized form, kindly register your e-mail address with your Depository Participant at the earliest; 

or  

 

hold your shares in physical form, kindly register your e-mail address with Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd our Registrar 

and Share Transfer Agent, at the following address at the earliest. 

 

Ms. Deepali Dhruvi 

Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd,  

Unit No. 9, Ground Floor, Shiv Shakti Industrial. 

Estate, J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel East, Mumbai-400011, 

Maharashtra, India.  

E-mail Address: support@purvashare.com 

 

You may use the format given below for registering your e-mail address with Purva Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd 

 

We wish to inform you that in addition to getting the documents through your registered e-mail, you can also have access to 

the documents through our Company Website: www.arabianpetroleum.co. The document will also be available to you for 

inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during office hours. 

 

We are sure you would appreciate the “Green Initiative” taken by MCA, just as it is being welcomed by companies like us. 

Needless to say, you will be, as a member of the Company, entitled to be furnished with a copy of the above-mentioned 

documents as required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, free of cost, upon receipt of a requisition from you 

any time. 

 

http://www.arabianpetroleum.co/
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We solicit your whole-hearted co-operation in helping the Company implement the e-governance initiatives of the 

Government in the interest of environment, which is the need of the hour. 

 

This communication may be ignored, if your email address is already registered with your Depository Participant/ Purva 

Sharegistry (India) Pvt. Ltd 

 

Thanking you, 

 

Yours faithfully, 

For ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

SD/- 

HEMANT DALSUKHRAI MEHTA  

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR  

DIN: 02507616 



NOTICE 

Notice is hereby given that the 16th Annual General Meeting of the Members of ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED (CIN- 

U23200MH2009PLC191109) will be held on Monday, the September 29, 2025, at 04.00 P.M. through video conference to 

transact the following business: 

 

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. ADOPTION OF AUDITED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 

2025, ALONG WITH THE REPORTS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ THEREON: - 

To consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, 

including the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date 

and the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

 

 2. ADOPTION OF AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 

2025, ALONG WITH THE REPORTS OF THE AUDITORS’ THEREON: - 

To consider and adopt the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, 

including the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date 

and the Report of the Auditors thereon. 

 

3. APPOINTMENT OF MR. MANAN HEMANT MEHTA (DIN 05124747), AS A “WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR”, LIABLE TO 

RETIRE BY ROTATION, BEING ELIGIBLE, OFFERS HIMSELF FOR RE-APPOINTMENT: - 

 

To appoint an Executive Director in place of Mr. Manan Hemant Mehta (DIN 05124747), Whole Time Director, who retires 

by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for reappointment, as a “Whole Time Director” of the Company. 

 
The Shareholders are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution As an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTION: - 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 

the approval of the Shareholders of the Company, be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mr. Manan Hemant 

Mehta (DIN 05124747), as a “Whole Time Director”, who shall be liable to retire by rotation.”  

 

4. APPOINTMENT OF M/S. VIJAY S. TIWARI AND ASSOCIATES AS SECRETARIAL AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY:- 

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personal) Rules, 2014 including any amendments thereto for the time being 

in force, M/s. Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries (CP No.12220) be and is hereby appointed as the 

Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct auditing of the secretarial and related records of the Company and to furnish 

Secretarial Audit Report for Five years from the Financial year 2025-26 to Financial year 2029-30 at a remuneration as may 

be mutually agreed between the Secretarial Auditor and the Board of Directors of the Company. 
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By Order of the Board 

For ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

SD/- 

HEMANT DALSUKHRAI MEHTA  

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR  

DIN: 02507616 

 

Registered Office 

Plot 14-B, Morivali M.I.D.C., Opp. Positive Packaging, Ambernath (W),  

Thane, Ambernath, Maharashtra, India, 421505 

CIN: U23200MH2009PLC191109 

 

Dated: September 06, 2025 

Place: Thane 



NOTES 

1. If Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated 

October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and other applicable circulars and notifications issued (including any statutory 

modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force and as amended from time to time, companies are 

allowed to hold EGM/AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical 

presence of members at a common venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, EGM/AGM shall be conducted through 

VC / OAVM. 

 

2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility 

to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body 

Corporates are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and 

participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 

3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 

EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 

include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, 

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without 

restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of 

reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)  the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) 

issued by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as 

amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is providing 

facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, 

the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting 

through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting 

system as well as e-voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling 

the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.arabianpetroleum.co. The Notice can also 

be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 

www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also available on the website of 

NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e.www.evoting.nsdl.com.   

 

http://www.arabianpetroleum.co./
http://www.nseindia.com/
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7. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time to time. 

  

8. The Company has appointed Mr. Vijay Kumar Tiwari, Practicing Company Secretary, proprietor of M/s. Vijay S. 

Tiwari & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, Mumbai (ACS: 33084; COP: 12220) as Scrutinizer to scrutinize 

the e-voting process in fair and transparent manner. 

 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

 

(i) The remote e-voting period begins on, Friday, September 26, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on, Sunday, 

September 28, 2025 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 

The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-

off date) i.e. September 22, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be 

in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 

September 22s, 2025. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode. 
 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 

their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click on 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You will have 

to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., Verification code and 

generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on registered email id/mobile number and 

click on login. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website 

of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the 

e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which 



is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User 

ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 

services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-

Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website 

of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting. 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon 

“Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will 

open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 

number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 

site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 

service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 

meeting & voting during the meeting.  

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 

facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting 

experience.  

 .  

Individual Shareholders 

holding securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their 

existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 

page without any further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are 

requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New 

System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the 

information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 

able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote 

during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
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meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-

Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 

website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab 

and then click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat 

Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending 

OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After 

successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the 

evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 

Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 

(holding securities in demat 

mode) login through their 

depository participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your 

Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 

logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 

will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 

wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 

voting during the meeting. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 

Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 

login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 

by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 022-4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 

sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 

no. 1800-21-09911 

 

 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with 

your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting 

and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 

or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 

12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 

account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 

then your user ID is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 

Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 

the company 

For example, if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 

101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 
 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your 

vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ 

which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 

password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ 

is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your 

mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e., a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password 

to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 

account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 

your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 

shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your password: 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on 

www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c)If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and 

your registered address etc. 

d)Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting 

system of NSDL. 

7.After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box. 

8.Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9.After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 

and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your 

vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under 

“Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 

you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 

Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly 

authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csvijaytiwari@gmail.com with 

a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also 

upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution 

/ Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 

password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 

mailto:csvijaytiwari@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 

User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 

manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on no.: 022-4886 7000    

or send a request to Mr. Rahul Rajbhar at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 

password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 

certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 

Aadhar Card) by email to cs@arabianpetroleum.co.in.  

 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), 

Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), 

AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@arabianpetroleum.co.in. If you are an Individual 

shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 

(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode. 

 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and 

password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 09, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 

correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER: - 

 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-

voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 

casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be 

eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will not 

be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the 

day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 

 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:cs@arabianpetroleum.co.in
mailto:cs@arabianpetroleum.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

 
1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting 

system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After 

successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are 

requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in 

Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do 

not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same 

by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 

during the meeting. 

 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile 

Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore 

recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 

mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 

cs@arabianpetroleum.co.in. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 
6. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a 

speaker by sending their request from their registered e-mail ID mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/Folio 

number, PAN, mobile number at cs@arabianpetroleum.co.in from Friday, September 05, 2025 (9:00 a.m. IST) to 

Wednesday, September 10, 2025 (5:00 p.m. IST). Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will 

only be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict 

the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. 

 

  BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

For ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

SD/- 

HEMANT DALSUKHRAI MEHTA  

CHIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR  

DIN: 02507616 

Registered Office                

Plot 14-B, Morivali M.I.D.C., Opp. Positive Packaging, Ambernath (W),  

Thane, Maharashtra, India, 421505 

CIN: U23200MH2009PLC191109 

 

Dated: September 06, 2025 

Place: Thane 

mailto:cs@arabianpetroleum.co.in
mailto:cs@arabianpetroleum.co.in


EXPLANTORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013 
 

Item No. 4 

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) the Company has to annex to its Board’s Report a Secretarial 

Audit Report given by a practicing company secretary in the format as may be prescribed. Rule 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration) Rules 2014 prescribes Form MR-3 for the said Secretarial Audit Report. Further, Section 

179 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 provide that the 

appointment of Secretarial Auditor shall be made by the Board at the meeting of the Board. 

SEBI vide its notification dated 12th December, 2024 amended Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations). The Amended regulation read with the SEBI circular 

no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFDPoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated 31st December, 2024 (the Circular) have inter-alia prescribed the 

term of appointment/re-appointment, eligibility, qualifications and disqualifications of Secretarial Auditor of a Listed 

Company. 

As per the amended Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, the Company (i.e. Arabian Petroleum Limited) is required to 

undertake Secretarial Audit by a Secretarial Auditor who shall be a Peer Reviewed Company Secretary and annex a 

Secretarial Audit Report in such form as specified by SEBI, with the annual report of the Company. 

In accordance with the above, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 28th May, 2025 considered, approved and 

recommended to the Shareholders of the Company for their approval, the appointment of M/s. Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates, 

a firm of Company Secretaries in practice, (Mem. No. 33084), as Secretarial Auditors of the Company at the ensuing 16th 

Annual General Meeting for a term of 5 consecutive Years, to conduct Secretarial Audit of five consecutive financial year and 

issue (i) the Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the Act for the Term and (ii) the Secretarial Audit Reports under 

Regulation 24A(1)(a) of the Listing Regulations for the Term. 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

Details of Directors seeking Appointment / Re-appointment (As per Regulation 36(3) of LODR) 

 

Name Manan Hemant Mehta 

Date of Birth December 18, 1989 

Appointed on November 10, 2011 

Qualifications B. Tech and MBA 

Brief Profile He is a Whole time Director of our Company. He has been on 

the board of our company since March 2011. He has an 

overall experience of 9 years in manufacturing and trading 

of lubricants. He is currently involved in sales and marketing 

and quality control operations of the company. Under his 

leadership, our 

company has been successful in expanding its customer 

base. 

Directorship held in Public 

Companies 

- 

Memberships/Chairmanships of 

Audit and Stakeholder’s 

Relationship Committees across 

Public Companies 

- 

No. of Shares held in the Company 2067360 



DIRECTORS’ REPORT  

To the Members of 

ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED  

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 16TH Annual Report of the Company together with Audited Standalone 

and Consolidated Statement of Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The key highlights of the performance of your Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 are as under: 

              

Particulars 
Standalone Amount Consolidated Amount 

 March 31, 2025,  March 31, 2024  March 31, 2025,  March 31, 2024 

Income From Operations 28524.66 26185.15 28524.66 26185.44 

Other Income 102.94 90.48 102.94 90.48 

Total Income 28627.60 26275.92 28627.60 26275.92 

Expenses [Except Depreciation 

Expenses] 
27183.19 25104.17 

 

27187.19 

 

25104.18 

Provision For Depreciation 149.86 158.27 149.86 158.27 

Profit / (Loss) Before Extra-

Ordinary Items [Net of Tax 

Expenses] 

1220.16 915.86 

 

1216.16 

 

915.86 

Less: Exceptional items (74.39) (97.62) (74.39) (97.62) 

Profit / (Loss) Before Tax  1220.16 915.86 1216.16 915.86 

Less: TAX Expenses: 912.43 680.50 908.44 680.50 

Current Tax (315.00) (239.43) (315.00) (239.43) 

Current Tax relating to prior years (1.22) 0.88 (1.22) 0.88 

Deferred Tax  8.49 3.19 8.49 3.19 

Excess / Short Tax Provision W/off - - - - 

Profit / (Loss) before Minority 

Interest 
- - 

- - 

Less: Minority Interest - - - - 

Profit / (Loss) After Tax  912.43 680.50 908.44 680.50 

     

Paid-up Share Capital 10,89,20,000 10,89,20,000 10,89,20,000 10,89,20,000 
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COMPANY PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW 

During the year under review your company has reported the revenue from operation amounted to Rs. 28,524.66 lakhs 

as against Rs. 26,185.15 lakhs on standalone basis and Rs. 28,524.66 lakhs as against Rs. 26,185.15 lakhs on consolidated 

basis during the previous financial year. The Net Profit of your Company, for the year amounted to Rs. 912.43 lakhs as 

against Rs. 680.50 lakhs on standalone basis and Rs. 908.44 lakhs as against Rs. 680.50 lakhs on consolidated basis during 

the previous financial year. 

 

STATE OF AFFAIRS 

(PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(i) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,2013) 

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing wide range of Lubricants including Specialty Oils, Coolants 

etc. used for Industrial and Automotive applications. There is no change in the business of the Company during the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT 

There have been no material changes and commitments, which affect the financial position of the Company, that have 

occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date of this report. 

 

DIVIDEND 

Our directors have not recommended dividend for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

TRANSFER TO RESERVE  

The Company has transferred Rs. 680.50 lakhs to the Reserves for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

The Authorised Share Capital of the company as on March 31, 2025  was Rs. 1,100 Lakhs divided into 110,00,000 equity 

shares of Rs. 10/- each.  

During the year under review, the Company has not allotted any shares. 

Consequently, the paid-up equity shares capital of the company stood at Rs. 1089.20 Lakhs consisting of 1,08,92,000 

equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 

 

SUBSIDIARY / JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATES 

As on March 31, 2025, The Company has 1 Subsidiary Companies pursuant to the Provisions of Section 129(3) of The 

Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, A Statement containing salient features of 

financial statements of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture Companies in Form Aoc-1 is annexed herewith and 

marked as Annexure – ‘I’ to this report.   

 

The Separate Financial Statements in respect of the Subsidiary company shall be kept open for inspection at The 

Registered Office of the Company. 

 

The Company will also make available these documents upon request by any member of the company interested in 

obtaining the same. 



 

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As required under Section 134(3)(a) & Section 92(3) of the Act, the Annual Return is put up on the Company’s website 

and can be accessed at www.arabianpetroleum.co. & Extracts of the Annual return in form MGT 9 for the Financial Year 

2024-25 is uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.arabianpetroleum.co. 

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that: 

 

 in the preparation of Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standard have been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures. 

 

 the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

estimates that are reason- able and prudent so as to give true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at 

the end of Financial Year March 31, 2025, and the Profit or Loss of the Company for the period; 

 

 the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Companies Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and preventing and detecting 

fraud. 

 
 The Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts for the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2025, on a going concern 

basis. 

 
 the Directors had laid down Internal Financial Controls to be followed by the Company and that such Internal 

Financial Controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

 

 the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

The Company has not granted any loan or guarantee during the year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

FIXED DEPOSITS 

The Company has not invited/ accepted any deposits from the public during the year ended March 31, 2025. Hence, there 

were no unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on March 31, 2025. 

 

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 

During the year under review, the provision of section 125(2) of Companies Act, 2013 does not apply as the company 

was not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education Protection Fund (IEPF) established by Central 

Government of India. 

 

 

http://www.arabianpetroleum.co.in/
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APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 

During year, no application was made or proceeding pending under Insolvency and Bankruptcy code, 2016 against the 

Company. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS & THEIR ADEQUACY 

Your Company has an adequate and effective Internal Control Mechanism in place which is commensurate with the size, 

scale and complexity of its operations, to ensure efficient conduct of its operations, security of assets, prevention and 

detection of frauds / errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information as per its Management Information System (MIS). These controls have been designed to provide a 

reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounting controls for ensuring reliability of financial 

reporting, monitoring of operations and protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, compliances with regulations. 

The Company has continued its efforts to align all its processes and controls with global best practices. 

 

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

The composition of the Board consists of the following persons: 

Key Managerial Personnel 

(1) Mr. Hemant Mehta                   - Managing Director 

(2) Ms. Rekha Rani Naraniwal  - Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

(3) Mr. Kishan Suta   - C.O.O. & Vice President   

(4) Mr. Dharman Manoj Mehta   - CFO & Whole time director 
 

Executive Directors  

(1) Mr. Manan Hemant Mehta (Whole time director) 

 

Non-Executive, Independent Directors 

(1)  Mr. Dinesh Babulal Panchal  

(2) Mr. Milan Mohanlal Paleja 

 

   Non-Executive, Non-Independent Directors 

(3) Mrs. Darshana Hemant Mehta 

 

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Manan 

Hemant Mehta, Whole time Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 

Company and being eligible offer for re-appointment.  

The above re-appointment form part of the Notice of the Annual General Meeting. 

 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. During the 

year, 8 (Eight) Board Meetings and were held on the following dates: 

(i) April 26, 2024   (iv) September 07, 2024  (vii) January 24, 2025 

(ii) May 29, 2024  (v) October 17, 2024  (viii) March 10, 2025 

(iii) June 29, 2024  (vi) November 14, 2024   



 The composition of the Board and the attendance details of the Members are given below: 

Name of the Directors Category 
No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mr. Hemant Dalsukhrai Mehta 
Chairman &Managing 

Director 
8 8 

Mr. Dinesh Babulal Panchal 
Non-Executive,  

Independent Director 
8 8 

Mr. Milan Mohanlal Paleja 
Non-Executive,  

Independent Director 
8 8 

Mrs. Darshana Hemant Mehta 

 

Non-Executive,  

Non-Independent Director 
8 8 

Mr. Manan Hemant Mehta Whole time Director 8 8 

Mr. Dharman Manoj Mehta CFO & Whole time Director 8 8 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR’S MEETING  

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on March 10, 2025 inter alia, to discuss: 

 Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole; 

 Evaluation of the performance of Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive and Non-

Executive Directors. 

 Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Management and the Board that 

is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.  

 

All the Independent Directors were present at the Meeting. 

 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 

149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

SEBI COMPLAINTS REDRESS SYSTEM (SCORES): 

The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redress system. The salient features of this 

system are centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports\(ATRs) by the concerned 

companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status. Your Company has 

been registered on SCORES and makes every effort to resolve all investor complaints received through SCORES or 

otherwise within the statutory time limit from the receipt of the complaint. The Company has not received any complaint 

on the SCORES during financial year 2024-25. 

 

AUDITORS’ AND AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Statutory Auditors 

Viral Jain & Associates, (FRN 135089W) Chartered Accountants was appointed as the statutory auditor of the company .  
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The Audit Report on the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended on March 31 2025, issued by M/s. Viral Jain 

& Associates, (FRN 135089W) Chartered Accountants, is unmodified and does not contain any qualifications, 

reservations, or adverse remarks. The information referred to in Auditor’s Report is self-explanatory and hence does not 

require any further clarification.  

The first proviso to section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been omitted vide section 40 of the Companies 

(Amendment) Act, 2017 notified on May 07, 2018. Therefore, it is not mandatory for the Company to place the matter 

relating to appointment of statutory auditor for ratification by members at every Annual General Meeting. Hence the 

Company has not included the ratification of statutory auditors in the Notice of AGM. 

During the Year under review, the Auditors have not reported any matter under Section 143 (12) of the Act, therefore 

no detail is required to be disclosed under Section 134 (3)(ca) of the Act. 

 

Internal Auditor  

The Company has also appointed M/s Akshay Parikh and Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 

142987W) represented by Mr. Akshay Parikh, having Membership No - 169886, as Internal Auditor of the Company. 

Internal Audit Reports are discussed with the Management and are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board. 

During the year, Company's Internal Controls were tested and no reportable weakness in the system was observed. 

 

Secretarial Auditor 

The Board has appointed M/s. Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, to carry out the Secretarial 

Audit pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for 5 (Five) years from the Financial Year 2025-26 to 2029-30. The 

Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure – ‘II’ 

to this Report. 

 

Cost Auditor 

M/s Joshi Apte & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 00240) represented by Mr. Ashish Thatte, having 

Membership No. 27543 as the Cost Auditor for auditing the cost accounting records of the company for the financial year 

2024-25 is appointed as the Cost auditor of the company. Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as 

prescribed under the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is applicable for the business activities 

carried out by the Company. 

 

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS 

During the year under review, neither the statutory auditors nor the secretarial auditor has reported to the audit 

committee, under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of fraud committed against the Company 

by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in the Board’s report. 

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

The Company has constituted different Committees under the Board that are mandated under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

[I] Mandatory Committees 

(a) Audit Committee 



The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors oversees the Financial Statements and Financial Reporting before 

submission to the Board.  

 

The Audit Committee is responsible for the recommendation of the appointment, remuneration, performance 

and oversight of the Internal and Statutory Auditors. It reviews the Reports of the Internal Auditors and 

Statutory Auditors. The Senior Management Personnel are invited to the meetings of the Audit Committee, along 

with the Head of Internal Audit. 

 

        During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 4 (Four) times to deliberate on the various matters. The 

Meetings were held on May 29, 2024, September 07, 2024, November 14, 2024 and March 10, 2025. 

The composition of the Committee and the attendance details of the Members are given below: 

 

Name of the Directors Category 
No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mr. Milan Mohanlal Paleja  

 

 Chairman, Non-Executive, 

Independent Director 
4 4 

Mr. Dinesh Babulal Panchal 

 

Member, Non-Executive, 

Independent Director 
4 4 

Mrs. Darshana Hemant Mehta 
Member, Non-Executive, 

Non-Independent Director 
4 4 

 

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee  

Your Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The functions of this Committee include identification of 

persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed as Senior Management, formulation 

of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence, recommendations of their 

appointments to the Board, evaluation of every Director’s performance, formulation of Remuneration Policy to 

include recommendation of remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. 

 

At present, there are 3 (Three) Members in the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in which all of them 

are Non-Executive Directors and 2 Members out of 3 are Non-Executive Independent Directors. 

 

During the year under review, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee met twice in order to appoint to 

deliberate on the various matters. The Meeting was held on May 29, 2024 and March 10, 2025. 

The composition Committee and the attendance details of the Members are given below: 

 

Name of the Directors Category 
No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mr. Milan Mohanlal Paleja 
Chairman, Non-Executive, 

Independent Director 
2 2 

Mr. Dinesh Babulal Panchal 

 

Member, Non-Executive, 

Independent Director 
2 2 



  
27  

Mrs. Darshana Hemant Mehta 

 

Member, Non-Executive,        

Non-Independent Director 
2 2 

 

Remuneration Policy, Details of Remuneration and Other Terms of Appointment of Directors. 

The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a Policy for 

Selection and Appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. This Policy inter-alia 

includes: 

 

(i) Criteria of Selection of Non-Executive Directors  

 Non-Executive Directors will be selected on the basis of Identification of Industry / subject leaders with 
strong experience. The advisory area and therefore the role may be defined for each independent 
director. 

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall ensure that the Candidate identified for 
Appointment as a Director is not disqualified for Appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

 In case of Appointment of Independent Directors, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall 
satisfy itself with regard to the independent nature of the Directors vis-a–vis the Company so as to 
enable the Board to discharge its function and duties effectively. 

 

(ii) Remuneration  

Sitting fees given to Independent Directors is as per approved by Board.  

 The Independent Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees for each 

meeting of the Board or Committee of the Board attended by them, or such sum as may be approved by 

the Board of Directors within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and The 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 In addition, Independent Directors shall be entitled to receive reimbursement of expenses for 

participation in the Board/Committee Meetings. 

 

(c) Stakeholders Relationship and Grievance Committee 

Your Company has reconstituted the Stakeholders Relationship and Grievance Committee of the Company 

pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 which comprises of 3 (Three) Directors .The committee is 

headed by Mrs. Darshana Hemant Mehta.  

 

During the year under review, the Stakeholders Relationship and Grievance Committee met twice on The 

Meeting was held on May 29, 2024 and March 10, 2025 in order to take on note the Share Transfer / 

Transmission / Demat of Shares / Sub-Division as intimated by the RTA of the Company. 

 

The composition of the Share Transfer and Stakeholders Relationship Committee is given below: 

 

Name of the Directors Category 

No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Mrs. Darshana Hemant Mehta 

 

Chairman, Non-Executive, 

Non-Independent 
2 2 



Mr. Dinesh Babulal Panchal 

 

Member, Non-Executive, 

Independent Director 
2 2 

Mr. Manan Hemant Mehta 
Member, Whole Time 

Director 
2 2 

 

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM  

The Company has a robust vigil mechanism through its Whistle Blower Policy approved and adopted by Board of 

Directors of the Company in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 (10) of the Act and Regulation 22 of the Listing 

Regulations. 

 

The Policy provides protection to the directors, employees and business associates who report unethical practices and 

irregularities. 

 

Any incidents that are reported are investigated and suitable action is taken in line with the Whistle Blower Policy. 

However, no complaint of this nature has been received by the Audit Committee during the Fiscal year 2025. The Whistle 

Blower Policy of the Company can be accessed at website of the Company at www.arabianpetroleum.co.  

  

           RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

The Management has put in place adequate and effective system and manpower for the purposes of risk management. In 

the opinion of the Board, following would threaten the existence risk of the Company: 

 

STAYING ONE STEP AHEAD OF RISK 

The Company has laid down a well-defined risk management mechanism covering the risk mapping and trend analysis, 

risk exposure, potential impact and risk mitigation process. A detailed exercise is being carried out to identify, evaluate, 

manage and monitoring of both business and non-business risks. 

 

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of 

its own performance, the Directors individually including the Chairman of the Board as well as the evaluation of the 

Committees of the Board. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was also carried out by the entire 

Board. 

 

The results of the evaluation done by Independent Directors were reported to the Chairman of the Board. It was reported 

that the performance evaluation of the Board, Committee etc. was satisfactory. The Directors expressed their satisfaction 

with the evaluation process. 

 

ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going 

concern status and Company’s operations in future.  

 

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN 

The Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at the workplace and has adopted a policy on prevention, 

prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. Internal Complaints 

http://www.arabianpetroleum.co./
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Committee (ICC) has been constituted to consider & redress all sexual harassment complaints. The Company is 

committed to providing equal opportunities without regard to their race, caste, sex, religion, color, nationality, disability, 

etc. All women associate (permanent, temporary, contractual and trainees) as well as any women visiting the Company’s 

office premises or women service providers are covered under this Policy. All employees are treated with dignity with a 

view to maintain a work environment free of sexual harassment whether physical, verbal or psychological. 

During Fiscal year 2025, the Company has not received any complaints of sexual harassment. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

The particulars of Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company. 

 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS OUTGO 

During the period under review there was 3,772.92 Lakhs as Foreign Exchange Earnings. 

 

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION AND PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The Disclosures with respect to the Remuneration of Directors and Employees as required under Section 197 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

Rules, 2014 along with, a statement containing particulars of Employees as required under Section 197 of Companies 

Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 

2014 is annexed herewith and marked as Annexure – “III” and form part of this report. 

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

All related party transactions are entered on arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of business and are in compliance 

with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. There are no materially significant related party transactions 

made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may 

have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Accordingly, no transactions are being reported in 

Form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. However, the 

details of the transactions with the Related Party are provided in the Company’s financial statements in accordance with 

the Accounting Standards. 

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year, 

such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation was observed. The internal 

financial control of the company is adequate to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, timely 

preparation of reliable financial information, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, safeguarding of the assets, 

and that the business is conducted in an orderly and efficient manner. 

 

DEPOSITORY SYSTEM 

As the Members are aware, your Company’s shares are tradable compulsorily in Electronic Form and the Company has 

established connectivity with both the Depositories in the Country i.e. NSDL and CDSL. In view of the various advantages 

offered by the Depository System, Members are requested to avail of the facility of dematerialization of the Company’s 

shares on either of the aforesaid Depositories. 



 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Conduct, which is applicable to the Members of the Board and all 

Employees in the course of day-to-day business operations of the Company. Certificate is attached as Annexure IV. 

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

The Directors state that the applicable secretarial standards i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meeting of the Board of 

Directors’ and ‘Meeting of General Meeting, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company. 

 

LISTING OF SHARES ON STOCK EXCHANGE 

The Company’s equity shares are listed on emerge platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (BRR) 

The Business Responsibility Reporting as required by regulation 34(2) (f) of the SEBI (listing obligations and disclosure 

requirement) regulations, 2015 is not applicable on company for the financial year ending, March 31, 2025. 

 

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to regulate trading in 

Securities by the Directors and Designated Employees of the Company. The Board is responsible for implementation of 

the Code.  

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and transparency. We ensure that 

we evolve & follow the corporate governance guidelines & best practices sincerely to boost long term shareholder value 

legally, ethically & sustainably. We consider it an inherent responsibility to disclose timely and accurate information 

regarding its operations and performance. We also endeavor to maximize shareholders value and respect minority rights 

in all our business decisions. 

Our company is Listed on Emerge Platform of National Stock exchange of India Limited (NSE), by virtue of Regulation 15 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the compliance with the corporate 

Governance provisions as specified in regulation 17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and 

Para C, D and E of schedule V is not applicable to the company. 

 

EDUCATION, TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 

In an ever changing and fast paced corporate world, training and development is an indispensable function and 

management of Arabian Petroleum Limited believes that training presents a prime opportunity to expand the knowledge 

base of all employees. A structured training and development program are organized for employees to have a consistent 

experience and background knowledge. We encourage a culture of continual learning among employees through various 

Training & development sessions within the organization. Arabian Petroleum Limited team always focus on producing 

targeted and tangible results for the business, treat it seriously and consider it a capital investment and make it results-

driven. The results from our training and development initiatives have been very positive and clearly presented the 

enhanced productivity, efficiency & effectiveness. 
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BOARD POLICIES 

We seek to promote and follow the highest level of ethical standards in all our business transactions guided by our value 

system. The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 mandate the formulation of certain policies for all listed 

companies. The Corporate governance policies are available on the Company’s website, at www.arabianpetroleum.co 

The policies are reviewed periodically by the board and update as needed. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The brief outline of the CSR policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during 

the year are set out in Annexure – ‘V’ of this report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. This Policy is available on the Company’s website at www.arabianpetroleum.co. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) / CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION 

Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements formulated by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (SEBI), the CEO/CFO certification is not applicable to your Company as it is an SME Listed Entity. 

 

OTHER DISCLOSURES 

a. The Company does not have any scheme or provision of money for the purchase of its own shares by employees/ 

Directors or by trustees for the benefit of employees/ Directors; 

b. The Company has not issued equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise; 

c. The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares/ESOP/ RSUs to its directors or employees; and 

d. There was no revision of financial statements and Board’s report of the Company during the year under review. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Your Directors wish to thank the Shareholders, Clients, Bankers and Others associated with the Company for their 

continued support during the year. Your Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the dedication and 

commitment of the Employees at all levels. 

 

               BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 

For ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

       SD/- 

HEMANT DALSUKHRAI MEHTA  

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR 

DIN: 02507616 

  

    Registered Office 

    Plot 14-B, Morivali M.I.D.C., Opp. Positive Packaging, Ambernath (W),  

    Thane, Ambernath, Maharashtra, India, 421505 

    CIN: U23200MH2009PLC191109 

 

    Dated: September 06, 2025 

    Place: Mumbai 

http://www.arabianpetroleum.com/


ANNEXURE - I TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

Form AOC- 1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 

of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2O14) 

 

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate companies or Joint 

ventures 

      Part A Subsidiaries                  (In AED) 

Sr. No. Particulars 
Name of Subsidiary 

Arzol Petroleum Trading FZE 

1 Date since when the subsidiary was acquired 

 

15th January, 2025 

 

2 
The reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company's reporting period 
March 31, 2025 

3 

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the date 

of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign 

subsidiaries 

AED 

4 Share Capital 50,000 

5 Reserves & Surplus (17,814) 

6 Total Assets 50,000 

7 Total Liabilities 50,000 

8 Investments - 

9 Turnover - 

10 Profit / (Loss) before Taxation (17,184) 

11 Provision for Taxation - 

12 Profit / (Loss) after Taxation (17,184) 

13 Proposed Dividend - 

14 % Of shareholding 100% 
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ANNEXURE - II TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

FORM NO. MR -3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022 

[Pursuant to section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To 

The Members, 

ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

Plot 14-B, Morivali M.I.D.C.,  

Opp. Positive Packaging,  

Ambernath (W), Thane-421505, 

Maharashtra, India,  

 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 

corporate practices by Arabian Petroleum Limited (hereinafter called ‘the Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted 

in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and 

expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 

representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the 

audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2025, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed 

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in 

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 

for the financial year ended on  March 31, 2025, according to the provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under as applicable; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign 

Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’):- 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

 



I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with 

National Stock Exchange of India Limited. 

 

1. The Trade Marks Act, 1999 

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the all material aspects of applicable 

provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 

 

During the Period under review, provisions of the following Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. we’re 

not applicable to the Company: 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 

ii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 

Guidelines, 1999 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share based employee benefits) Regulations,2014; 

iii. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

iv. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

v. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

vi. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of External 

Commercial Borrowings; and 

 

WE HAVE ALSO EXAMINED COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE CLAUSES OF THE FOLLOWING: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with National Stock Exchange Limited. 

 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, 

Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

 

WE FURTHER REPORT THAT AS FAR AS WE ARE ABLE TO ASCERTAIN: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non–Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during 

the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 

at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on 

the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

Majority decisions are carried out while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

It is stated that the compliance of all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other laws is the 

responsibility of the management. We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its officers for 

systems and mechanism set-up by the Company for compliances under applicable laws. Our examination on a test-check 

basis was limited to the procedure followed by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the said provisions. We 
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state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted its affairs. We further state that this is neither an audit nor an 

expression of opinion on the financial activities/statements of the Company. Moreover, we have not covered any matter 

related to any other laws, other than those mentioned in the report which may be applicable to the Company, except, the 

aforementioned corporate and other laws of the Union of India. 

 

For, Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

 

SD/- 

 

CS Vijaykumar Tiwari 

Membership No: 33084 

C. P. No: 12220  

Peer Review Certificate No.: 1679/2022 

UDIN: A033084G001195300 

 

Place: Mumbai      

Date:   September 06, 2025 

 

 

 

 



    ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

To 

The Members, 

ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

Plot 14-B, Morivali M.I.D.C.,  

Opp. Positive Packaging,  

Ambernath (W), Thane-421505, 

Maharashtra, India, 

 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to 

express an opinion on these Secretarial Records based on our Audits. 

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was done based on the records and documents 

provided, on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and 

practices followed by me provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the Company. 

 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

5. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

responsibility of management. My examination was limited to verification of procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 

For, Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

SD/- 

CS Vijaykumar Tiwari 

Membership No: 33084 

C. P. No: 12220  

Peer Review Certificate No.: 1679/2022 

UDIN: A033084G001195300 

 

Place: Mumbai      

Date: September 06, 2025 
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ANNEXURE - III TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT    

PARTICULARS OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 

Statement pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees and percentage increase 

in remuneration of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company for the financial year: 

Name of Directors & Key 

Managerial Personnel 
Designation 

Increase in 

Remuneration 

in the financial 

year (%) 

Ratio of remuneration 

of each director to 

median remuneration 

of all employees* 

 

Hemant Dalsukhrai Mehta 
Chairman and 
Managing Director 

62.66% -- 

Manan Hemant Mehta Whole-time director 62.66% -- 

Dharman Manoj Mehta 
Whole-time director & 

CFO 
64.61 -- 

Darshana Hemant Mehta 
Non-Executive 

Director 
100% -- 

Dinesh Babulal Panchal 
Non-Executive & 

Independent 
-- -- 

Milan Mohanlal Paleja 
Non-Executive & 

Independent 
-- -- 

Rekha Rani Naraniwal Company Secretary 100% -- 

 

(ii) Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year: Nil 

(iii) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 217 

(iv) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 

last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification 

thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:  

(v) It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

 

 

For ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

     SD/- 

      HEMANT DALSUKHRAI MEHTA 

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR  

       DIN: 02507616 

Place: Thane                                                    

Date:  September 06, 2025 

 



ANNEXURE - IV TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT OF THE COMPANY 

As provided under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 it is hereby declared that all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have 

affirmed the Compliance of the Code of Conduct for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

 

For ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

     SD/- 

      HEMANT DALSUKHRAI MEHTA 

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR  

      DIN: 02507616 

Place: Thane                                                    

Date:  September 06, 2025 
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ANNEXURE - V TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES [FOR FINANCIAL YEAR COMMENCING ON OR AFTER 1ST DAY OF APRIL 2024] 

 

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken and 

a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs. 

 

The CSR vision of the Company is to integrate social and environmental concerns in its business operations and 

interactions with all stakeholders in order to achieve a balance of economic, environmental and social imperatives. CSR 

will remain a fundamental part of the Company’s practices, broad objective and overall culture. Company has constituted 

CSR Committee which recommends CSR activities to the Board for their approval. There is a monitoring team to overview 

the implementation of CSR activities. The Company implemented its CSR Project through implementing agencies by way 

of contribution. During the year under review, the Company has contributed towards programs encompassing the 

following areas: 

 

(a) Education 

(b) Health 

(c) Environment 

(d) Upliftment of poor 

 

The Company’s CSR Policy is available at www.arabianpetroleum.co. 

 

The Composition of the CSR Committee. 

 

CSR Committee as on March 31, 2025 consists of: 

Name of the Directors Category 
No. of Meetings 

Held Attended 

Dinesh Babulal Panchal 
Chairman, Non-Executive, 

Independent Director 
1 1 

Hemant Dalsukhrai Mehta Managing Director 1 1 

 

Manan Hemant Mehta 

 

    Whole-time director  1 1 

 

3. Information about Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are available at 

www.arabianpetroleum.co.  

 

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies 

(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not Applicable  

 

http://www.arabianpetroleum.com/
http://www.arabianpetroleum.com/


5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not Applicable  

6. Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years as per Section 135(5):  Rs. 527.11 Lakhs  

 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5): Rs. 10.54 Lakhs 

 

    (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financial years: Nil 

 

    (c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 

 

    (d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 10.54 Lakhs 

 

8. CSR amount spent for the financial year: 10.60 Lakhs 

 

9. CSR amount unspent for the financial year: Nil 

  

9. In case the Company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or any 

part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report. 

 

 

For ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

     SD/- 

      HEMANT DALSUKHRAI MEHTA 

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR  

   DIN: 02507616 

Place: Mumbai                                                    

Date:  September 06, 2025 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(PURSUANT TO REGULATION 34(3) AND SCHEDULE V PARA C CLAUSE (10)(I) OF THE SEBI  

(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015) 

 

TO 

THE MEMBERS, 

ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

Plot 14-B, Morivali M.I.D.C.,  

Opp. Positive Packaging,  

Ambernath (W), Thane-421505, 

Maharashtra, India 

 

Subject: Certificate in Pursuance of Paragraph Number C. 10(I) of Schedule V to the Sebi (Listing Obligations And Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the Financial Year ending On 31st March, 2025. 

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

In pursuance of sub-clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR) listed entity is requires to disclose in its annual 

report the certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the company have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

 

As on date of issue of this certificate, the Board of Directors of Arabian Limited (“the Company”), a listed entity, is comprised 

of following Directors. 

Sr. 

No. 
DIN Name of Director Designation 

Appointment Date on 

Current Designation 

1. 02507616 Mr. Hemant Dalsukhrai Mehta 
Chairman & Managing 

Director 
20.03.2009 

2. 05124747 Mr. Manan Hemant Mehta Whole-time director 10.11.2011 

3. 07821311 Mr. Dharman Manoj Mehta Whole-time director 15.04.2017 

4. 02507587 Mrs. Darshana Hemant Mehta 
Non-Executive, Non-

Independent Director 
20.03.2009 

5. 05328794 Mr. Dinesh Babulal Panchal 
Non-Executive 

Independent Director 
30.04.2022 

6. 

 

08127535

  

Mr. Milan Mohanlal Paleja 
Non-Executive 

Independent Director 
30.04.2022 

 



For the purpose, I have considered and examined annual submissions made by each Director of the Company in pursuance 

of provisions of section to section 164(2) read with rule 14(1) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 

Rules, 2014, relevant information as displayed on the website of the Securities and Exchange Board of India as well on the 

website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and information generally available on public domain. 

 

And based on above; I state that none of the Directors on the board of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from 

being appointed or continuing as director of companies for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025, by the Securities 

and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

 

For Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates 

Practising Company Secretaries 

SD/- 

Vijay Kumar Tiwari 

Proprietor  

ACS: 33084 

COP: 12220 

Peer Review Certificate No.: 1679/2022 

UDIN: A033084G001195344 

 

Date: September 06, 2025 

Place: Mumbai 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

GLOBAL ECONOMIC SCENARIO 

In 2024, the global economy experienced moderate growth of 3.3% (IMF World Economic Outlook, April 2025) amid a 

challenging macroeconomic environment. Persistent geopolitical tensions, disruptions in trade routes, and high interest 

rates in major economies created headwinds for global trade and consumption. However, resilient labour markets, easing 

inflationary pressures, and stable private consumption helped sustain economic activity, particularly in emerging markets.  

 

Global headline inflation continued its downward trajectory, declining from 6.7% in CY 2023 to 5.8% in CY 2024. However, 

it varies widely across regions— while many advanced economies are making significant progress towards meeting their 

target inflation rates, some emerging markets continue to grapple with high inflation due to currency depreciation and 

lingering supply chain disruptions. As inflationary pressures eased, major central banks began to pivot away from tight 

monetary policies and initiate gradual interest rate cuts, potentially improving liquidity conditions and supporting a revival 

in private investment.  

 

Looking ahead to 2025, the IMF has cut its forecast for the global economic growth to 2.8% following tariff measures being 

announced by the United States and countermeasures taken by its trading partners. Global growth is expected to recover to 

3% in 2026. The United States and the Euro Areas are expected to grow at 1.8% and 0.8% respectively. The emerging 

markets while impacted by the tariff shocks continue to be the growth drivers and are expected to grow by 3.7% in 2025 

and 3.9% in 2026. 

 

DOMESTIC ECONOMIC SCENARIO 

India remained one of the fastest-growing major economies in FY 2025, demonstrating strong macroeconomic fundamentals 

despite global uncertainties. The economy grew at a robust pace, supported by resilient domestic demand, infrastructure-

led government spending, and gradual easing of inflationary pressures. 

According to estimates, India’s GDP growth for FY 2024–25 is expected to remain strong at around 7.0%, following a growth 

of 7.6% in FY 2023–24. This sustained momentum was driven by higher public capex, strong private consumption, and a 

recovery in the manufacturing and construction sectors. Services and digital infrastructure also played a key role in boosting 

economic activity. 

Key economic indicators and trends: 

 Inflation remained within the Reserve Bank of India's target range, with CPI inflation expected to average around 

5.4% in FY 2025, helping stabilize input costs. 

 The RBI maintained a tight monetary policy stance, keeping the repo rate at 6.5%, balancing growth and 

inflation control. 

 Crude oil import volumes remained high, reflecting strong domestic energy demand across transportation, 

industrial, and power sectors. 

 The Indian Rupee remained stable despite global currency volatility, supported by strong forex reserves and capital 

inflows. 

For the petroleum sector, domestic consumption of petroleum products witnessed steady growth, with increased demand 

from mobility, aviation, and industrial segments. Demand for petrol, diesel, and LPG continued to rise, supported by urban 

expansion and rural energy needs. The government’s focus on energy security, refining capacity enhancement, and transition 

towards cleaner fuels also shaped sectoral priorities. 



India’s energy landscape is evolving, with a continued emphasis on balancing fossil fuel use with clean energy targets. 

However, in the medium term, petroleum remains critical to meeting the country’s growing energy demand. 

INDUSTRY REVIEW 

The petroleum sector in India plays a pivotal role in meeting the country’s energy requirements. During FY 2025–26: 

 Demand Growth: Fuel consumption in transportation, aviation turbine fuel, and industrial sectors continued to 

expand, supporting refinery throughput. 

 Refining & Marketing: Indian refiners focused on balancing export opportunities with growing domestic demand. 

Private refiners increased supply to the domestic market to capture rising retail demand. 

 Crude Price Volatility: Global crude oil price fluctuations affected input costs, necessitating careful inventory and 

hedging strategies. 

 Lubricant Segment: Lubricant demand recorded steady growth, supported by automotive recovery and industrial 

activities. Premiumisation trends continued with increasing adoption of synthetic and semi-synthetic lubricants. 

 Sustainability Push: Companies invested in cleaner fuels, low-sulphur products, and renewable integration 

(biofuels, ethanol blending, hydrogen pilots). 

 

INDIAN LUBRICANT INDUSTRY 

The Indian lubricant industry exhibited stable performance in FY 2025, supported by sustained growth in the automotive, 

industrial, and infrastructure sectors. India continues to be the third-largest lubricant market globally, following the U.S. 

and China, with a well-diversified demand base across sectors. 

1. Market Overview 

The lubricant market in India grew at an estimated 3–4% during FY 2025 in volume terms, aided by: 

 A rebound in automobile sales, especially in the two-wheeler and passenger vehicle segments. 

 Strong rural demand driven by higher agricultural activity and stable monsoons. 

 Continued momentum in the infrastructure and construction sectors, boosting demand for industrial lubricants. 

 Increased use of synthetic and high-performance lubricants across automotive and industrial applications. 

The market is broadly categorized into: 

 Automotive Lubricants (accounting for ~55–60% of total demand) 

 Industrial Lubricants (~30–35%) 

 Marine and other specialty applications (~5–10%) 

2. Segmental Trends 

 Automotive Lubricants: Growth was driven by increased vehicle usage, improving road infrastructure, and 

expansion in personal mobility. OEM tie-ups and demand for synthetic engine oils also contributed to value growth. 

 Industrial Lubricants: Demand remained firm, particularly from sectors like steel, cement, textiles, and general 

manufacturing. Focus on energy efficiency and maintenance optimization boosted the uptake of high-performance 

lubricants. 

 Greases and Specialties: Though a niche segment, demand for specialty greases grew moderately, supported by 

the needs of sectors like railways and mining. 

3. Trends and Challenges 

 Shift toward synthetic and semi-synthetic lubricants due to improved engine technologies and emission 

standards (BS-VI). 

 Growth in EVs is gradually reshaping the demand outlook for automotive lubricants, though the impact remains 

limited in the near term. 

 Raw material cost volatility (base oils and additives) influenced margins across the value chain. 
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 Sustainability focus, with increased interest in biodegradable and energy-efficient lubricants. 

The Indian lubricant market is expected to remain on a stable growth trajectory, supported by increasing mechanisation, 

evolving mobility needs, and the expanding industrial base. While electrification in transport may gradually impact 

traditional automotive lubricants, diversification into specialty fluids, synthetic oils, and industrial applications is expected 

to drive future growth. Companies focusing on innovation, supply chain agility, and customer-centric solutions will be well 

positioned in the evolving market landscape. 

 

Growth Catalysts 

Automotive growth - The expanding automotive sector, driven by rising vehicle ownership, especially two wheelers and 

passenger cars, will significantly boost demand for lubricants in India. Increased rural vehicle usage and growing logistics, 

with more commercial vehicles on the road, will further propel lubricant consumption, particularly heavy-duty variants. 

Vehicle Ownership Potential - As income levels rise in India, crossing the $2,700 per annum threshold, vehicle ownership 

is expected to surge, contributing to greater demand for automotive lubricants. 

Strong Prospects from the Rural Economy - Along with increased mechanization and automation of farming activities, 

machinery such as tractors finds extensive usage in the agriculture sector. This is expected to drive demand for lubricants 

in the rural economy as well. 

Advancement of Engine Technology - With a focus on emission control and efficiency, new technology is being used to 

improve the capacity of engines. The replacement of older BS III or BS IV with newer BS VI will enhance fuel efficiency and 

increase the demand for superior-quality lubricants. Along with this, increased use of lighter viscosity and synthetic oils will 

further drive value growth. 

India’s positioning as a Manufacturing Hub - The government’s emphasis on Atmanirbhar Bharat and Make in India has 

helped increase the manufacturing output of Indian companies and positioned the country as a global manufacturing hub. 

The China+1 strategy is also enhancing India’s prospects as a manufacturing hub. 

Positive Demographic Trends - Urban migration and a younger population are fueling demand for personal and 

commercial transportation, thereby increasing lubricant usage. The expected doubling of the middle class by 2047 will 

further drive demand for higher quality products, brands, and services in the vehicle and lubricant markets. 

 

OUR BUSINESS: 

We are in the business of manufacturing wide range of Lubricants including Specialty Oils, Coolants etc used for Industrial 

and Automotive applications. Our business is categorized into two distinctive product division: (i) Automotive Lubricants – 

Arzol and (ii) Industrial Lubricants – Daimler Trucks. We are dedicated to consistently providing products that deliver stellar 

quality and comply with statutory requirements in the Automotive and Industrial Lubricants domain. 

 

Our domestic and international customers are spread across multiple industries, including pharmaceutical, FMCG, chemicals, 

steel, rubber and tyre, power, civil engineering, electrical appliances, textile, telecommunication, chemical, cables and 

conductors and automobile industry etc. Apart from private players, we also derive our revenues under the contracts from 

the Government sectors (both central and state) and associated entities. We are honoured to be one of the suppliers of 

lubricants to the Indian Armed Forces and have successfully delivered lubricant products to Border Security Force (BSF), 

Indian Air Force (IAF) and Indian Navy across various parts of the country. 

We have product approval certification from Volvo Group Trucks Technology, Renault Group and MACK Trucks for our 

product “Milage Synactivs 15W-40” engine oil. We have recently received OEM approval from Bharat Earth Movers Limited 

(Formerly – BEML Limited) for their entire range of products like Engine oil, hydraulic oil etc. 



 

We also manufacture and package lubricants on private label basis for some of the customers for B2B as well as B2C verticals. 

Some of our clientele include: Varroc Engineering Limited, Mahindra First Choice Services Limited, Greaves Cotton Limited, 

Gabriel India Limited, Ki Mobility Solutions Private Limited - TVS Group Company, HELLA India Lighting Ltd, Petrel plus Inc, 

Nand Persaud & Co Ltd, J K Files (India) Limited - a Raymond Group Company, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Co. ltd etc. We 

also have government clientele including BEML Limited, Bharat Coking Coal Limited, Bharat Electronics Limited, Bharat 

Heavy Electricals Limited, Hindustan Aeronautics Limited, Indian Air Force, Mazagon Dock Shipbuilders Limited, Indian 

Navy (Controller of Procurement Material Organisation), Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai, Indian Railway, 

Western Coalfields Limited, South-Eastern Coalfields Limited, Northern Coalfields Limited etc. Furthermore, we are 

exporting our products to countries like: Guyana, Oman, Qatar, Vietnam, Sri Lanka, Sierre Leone, Zambia, Bangladesh, Chile, 

Jordan, Seychelles, Maldives, Fiji, Congo, Gautemala, Suriname, Peru, Mauritius, Dubai etc. 

 

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS 

We are one of the few manufacturers in India with comprehensive in-house capabilities of developing and manufacturing 

various types of Automotive and Industrial Lubricants including Specialty Oils, Coolants etc. Our products cater to multiple 

industries like: pharmaceutical, FMCG, chemicals, steel, rubber and tyre, power, civil engineering, electrical appliances, 

textile, telecommunication, chemical, cables and conductors and automobile industry etc. Our Company develops and 

manufactures a wide range of lubricating products with excellent demulsibility, oxidation and high thermal stability, low 

operational cost, protection against rust and corrosion, improved cleanliness, good water separating capability etc. We have 

special tailor-made products for onward usage by our customers to ensure efficient and effective functioning of their engines, 

appliances or machineries contributing to reduction in wear, noise and vibration levels through proper lubrication. All raw 

materials procured for manufacturing our products are sourced from trusted vendors and our quality control team applies 

stringent quality measurements at every manufacturing stage to ensure low rejection rate such that our finished product 

confirms to the exact requirement of our customers and successfully passes all validations and quality checks. 

 

Moreover, our company has entered into exclusive agreement with the subsidiary company of Ukraine based XADO group 

for use of its raw materials with revitalizing technology in blending its PROBUZ and REVERTO lubricants. Owing to the 

critical end applications of our products and such stringent quality requirements, we believe it becomes very difficult for 

new players to get qualified for the products we manufacture. 

 

Strengthening our Industrial and Automotive lubricants products portfolio 

We believe increased focus on Industrial and Automotive lubricants product portfolio will result in consolidating our market 

position, broadening our offering capabilities in the industry and enhancing our brand visibility. We propose to strategically 

move along the production chain and diversify our product offerings beyond the existing range of oils, lubricants and greases 

we currently offer. We intend to further diversify our product base and include more value-added products which yield 

better margins such as Specialty metalworking fluids, Auto care range of products, Mechanical Maintenance products, etc. 

 

For ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

     SD/- 

HEMANT DALSUKHRAI MEHTA 

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR  

DIN: 02507616 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF 

ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

 

Opinion  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED, which comprise the Standalone 

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss and Standalone Statement of the Cash Flows 

for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a 

true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit and Notes to accounts for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of 

the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 2.34 to the standalone financial statements, which describes the implementation of the audit trail 

feature in the Company’s accounting software during the financial year ended 31st March 2025. This feature ensures that all 

changes made to the books of accounts are recorded with a timestamp, user identification, and a brief description of the 

change. This feature enhances the transparency and reliability of the financial information provided by the Company.  

 

The audit trail feature was not accessible at the database level for accounting software to record any direct data changes, 

used for maintenance of all accounting records by the Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon 

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility 

Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial 



statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In 

connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our 

knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 

Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 

financial performance and notes to accounts of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis 

of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

 

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

 

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters, which are required 

to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules made there under. 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those 

Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and 

fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 

an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
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used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall 

presentation of the financial statements. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 

that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influence. 

 

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in   

 

i) Planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 

ii) To evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

 

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 

the audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified during our audit. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 

the Standalone financial statements. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. The Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of The Companies Act, 2013 is applicable to the company, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure A”.  

 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  
 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;  
 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;  
 

c. The Balance Sheet, and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 
 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 
e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board 

of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. 
 

g. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the said accounts give 
the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in, 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. 
 

• In the case of the Statement of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025. 



• In the case of the Statement of Profit & Loss, the profit for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

• In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, the cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us:  
 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.  
 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 

foreseeable losses. 

 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company. 

 

For Viral Jain & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No.: 135089W 

   

SD/- 

CA Rishabh Bhandari      

Partner  

Membership No.: 190900 

UDIN: 25190900BMIBRM8877 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 28th May, 2025 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of Arabian Petroleum 

Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 

 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of our report 

to the Members of Arabian Petroleum Limited of even date) 

 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to 

us during the course of our audit, we report that: 

 

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 

 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

        situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 

 

       (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets; 

 

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment so to cover all the assets once 

every three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 

assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the year and 

were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to 

us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

 

(c) Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land on which building is constructed, 

registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-

constructed buildings and title deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties where the company is 

the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements 

included under Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date; 

 

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use assets) and 

intangible assets during the year; 

 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for 

holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules 

made thereunder; 

 

ii. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of Inventories. As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified by the management at regular 

intervals; as informed to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

 

(b) The company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on 

the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly returns or statements filed by the company with such banks or financial 

institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the Company; 



 

iii. The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or 

other parties and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable; 

 

iv. The company has not provided any loan, investments, guarantees, and security for which provisions of section 185 

and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 has to be complied with; 

 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under Section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 

2013. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable; 

 

vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the 

Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to 

the manufacturing activities and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made 

and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same; 

 

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company examined 

by us, the company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State 

Insurance, Income-tax, GST and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities in India, 

there are certain cases where the payments are made after the statutory due date but the interest is been paid against 

the same;  

 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the records of the company examined by 

us, there are no dues of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax and GST which have not 

been deposited on account of any disputes. 

 

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as 

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

 

ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon 

to any lender; 

 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 

government authority; 

 

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained; 

 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-term basis have 

been used for long-term purposes by the Company; 

 

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from 

any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures; 
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(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures 

or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the 

Company; 

 

x. (a) The company has raised moneys by way of an Initial Public Offer. Such funds were applied for the purposes for 

which they were raised; 

 

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally 

convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order 

is not applicable to the Company; 

 

xi. (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial 

statements and according to the information and explanations given by the management, no fraud by the Company or 

no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year; 

 

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost 

auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT – 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 

Rules, 2014 with the Central Government; 

 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year while 

determining the nature, timing and extent of audit procedures; 

 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement 

to report on clause 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company; 

 

xiii Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where 

applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable 

accounting standards; 

The company has entered into Sales transactions with Eastern India Co., Arabian Technologies LLP and Purchase 

transactions with Eastern India Co in its ordinary course of business; 

 

xiv. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of 

its business. 

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued during the year and till the date of the audit report covering 

period upto 31st March, 2025 

 

xv. The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its 

directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company; 

 

xvi. (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not applicable to the 

Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company; 

 



 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without obtaining a valid 

Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 

 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. 

Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company; 

 

(d) As represented by the management, the Group does not have more than one Core Investment Company (CIC) as 

part of the Group as per the definition of Group contained in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 

2016; 

 

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately preceding financial year; 

 

xviii. There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and we have taken into consideration the 

issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors. 

 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 

financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the Board 

of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing 

has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 

report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall 

due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the 

future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 

report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year 

from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due; 

 

xx. (a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects 

requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-

section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for 

the year; 

 

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects that are required to be transferred to a special account 

in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 

3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable for the year; 

 

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of financial statements of the 

Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this report. 
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For Viral Jain & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No.: 135089W 

   

 

CA Rishabh Bhandari      

Partner  

Membership No.: 190900 

UDIN: 25190900BMIBRM8877 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 28th May, 2025 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors Report 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) 

 

[Referred to in Para 12(f) 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' Section of our report to the 

Members of Arabian Petroleum Limited of even date] 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED as of 

March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended 

on that date. 

 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an appropriate internal financial controls system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 

31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Overall, the internal financial controls are 

fairly adequate as aligned with the scale of the company. Considering the global environment and the growth prospects 

for the company and keeping the interest of various stakeholders into consideration it is further suggested that 

company should further strengthen and have elaborated written manuals in place. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 

business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 

frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based 

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 

both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 

was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
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reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 

that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 

reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 

made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 

assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.  

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

For Viral Jain & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No.: 135089W 

   

SD/- 

CA Rishabh Bhandari      

Partner  

Membership No.: 190900 

UDIN: 25190900BMIBRM8877 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 28th May, 2025 

 

 



 

 



  
59  

 

 



 

 

 



  
61  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 



  
63  

 



 

 



  
65  

 



 

 



  
67  

 



 



  
69  

 



 



  
71  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  
73  

 



 



  
75  

 



 

 



  
77  

 



 

 



  
79  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



  
81  

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

TO THE MEMBERS OF 

ARABIAN PETROLEUM LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statement 

 

Opinion  

We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of  Arabian Petroleum Limited  ("the Company"),  (hereinafter 

referred to as “the Holding Company”), and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as "the Company" or “the Group”) 

comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the 

year then ended, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow and notes to financial statements, including a summary of the 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated 

financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as 

at March 31, 2025, and consolidated profit for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India (‘ICAI’). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 

Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 

our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial 

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

There are no Key Audit Matters Reportable as per SA 701 issued by ICAI. 

 

Emphasis of Matter 

We draw attention to Note 2.34 to the standalone financial statements, which describes the implementation of the audit trail 

feature in the Company’s accounting software during the financial year ended 31st March 2025. This feature ensures that all 

changes made to the books of accounts are recorded with a timestamp, user identification, and a brief description of the 

change. This feature enhances the transparency and reliability of the financial information provided by the Company.  

 

The audit trail feature was not accessible at the database level for accounting software to record any direct data changes, 

used for maintenance of all accounting records by the Company. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

 



 

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other information. The other information 

comprises Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report but does not include the Consolidated financial statements 

and our auditor's report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 

of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of Consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated financial statements or our 

knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that if there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 

are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Responsibility of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 

financial position and the financial performance of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a 

true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management of Holding Company is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so. 

 

Those board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

 

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 

 

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

(e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 

matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the 

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 

because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A”, a statement on the matter specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 
of the Order.  

 

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:  



 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit;  

 

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;  

 

(c) The Balance Sheet, and the Statement of Profit and Loss dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 

 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of 
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 
(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board 

of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and operating 
effectiveness of such controls, referred to our separate report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

 
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section 

197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 
by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us:  

 

i. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.  
 

ii. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses. 
 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Group. 
 
iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 
(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the 
company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
 
(c) Based on the audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has 
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any 
material misstatement. 
 
v. The Group has not declared or paid dividend during the year. 
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For Viral Jain & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No.: 135089W 

   

 

CA Rishabh Bhandari      

Partner  

Membership No.: 190900 

UDIN: 25190900BMIBRO5559 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 28th May, 2025 

 

 

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Arabian 

Petroleum Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 

 

In terms of the information and explanations given to us and the books and records examined by us in the normal course 

of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state as under: 

 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the companies (Auditor Report) Order 

2020 of the holding company did not include any unfavourable answers or qualifications or adverse remarks for 

following subsidiary. 

 

Name Country Of Incorporation Relation 

Arzol Petroleum Trading FZE United Arab Emirates Wholly-Owned Subsidiary 

 

 

For Viral Jain & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No.: 135089W 

   

 

CA Rishabh Bhandari      

Partner  

Membership No.: 190900 

UDIN: 25190900BMIBRO5559 

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 28th May, 2025 

 

 



 

 

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors Report 

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 

2013 (“the Act”) 

 

[Referred to in Para 12(f) 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' Section of our report to the 

Members of Arabian Petroleum Limited of even date] 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over consolidated financial reporting of ARABIAN PETROLEUM 

LIMITED (‘the Company’) and its subsidiary company ARZOL PETROLEUM TRADING FZE as of March 31, 2025 in 

conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary for the year ended 

on that date. 

 

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to the 

Consolidated Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2025 

based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the Guidance Note”). 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s and its subsidiary company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

financial controls based on over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its 

assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and 

the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's and its subsidiary company’s internal financial controls 

over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 

ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 

audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 

controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material 

respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over consolidated financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
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over consolidated financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial 

reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 

effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion on the internal financial controls system with reference to consolidated financial statement of the company and 

its subsidiary company. 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial reporting is a process designed to 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 

for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial 

control over consolidated financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:  

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company;  

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 

company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and  

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or 

disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statement.   

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over consolidated financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud 

may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over consolidated financial 

reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 

or procedures may deteriorate 

 

For Viral Jain & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No.: 135089W 

   

CA Rishabh Bhandari      

Partner  

Membership No.: 190900 

UDIN: 25190900BMIBRO5559  

 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 28th May, 2025 
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